

User Manual

ZPad Plus(4G)

Date: October 2020 Doc Version: 1.4 English

Thank you for choosing our product. Please read the instructions carefully before operation. Follow these instructions to ensure that the product is functioning properly. The images shown in this manual are for illustrative purposes only.



For further details, please visit our Company's website www.zkteco.com.

Copyright © 2020 ZKTECO CO., LTD. All rights reserved.

Without the prior written consent of ZKTeco, no portion of this manual can be copied or forwarded in any way or form. All parts of this manual belong to ZKTeco and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the "Company" or "ZKTeco").

Trademark

ZKTECO is a registered trademark of ZKTeco. Other trademarks involved in this manual are owned by their respective owners.

Disclaimer

This manual contains information on the operation and maintenance of the ZKTeco equipment. The copyright in all the documents, drawings, etc. in relation to the ZKTeco supplied equipment vests in and is the property of ZKTeco. The contents here of should not be used or shared by the receiver with any third party without express written permission of ZKTeco.

The contents of this manual must be read as a whole before starting the operation and maintenance of the supplied equipment. If any of the content(s) of the manual seems unclear or incomplete, please contact ZKTeco before starting the operation and maintenance of the said equipment.

It is an essential pre-requisite for the satisfactory operation and maintenance that the operating and maintenance personnel are fully familiar with the design and that the said personnel have received thorough training in operating and maintaining the machine/unit/equipment. It is further essential for the safe operation of the machine/unit/equipment that personnel has read, understood and followed the safety instructions contained in the manual.

In case of any conflict between terms and conditions of this manual and the contract specifications, drawings, instruction sheets or any other contract-related documents, the contract conditions/documents shall prevail. The contract specific conditions/documents shall apply in priority.

ZKTeco offers no warranty, guarantee or representation regarding the completeness of any information contained in this manual or any of the amendments made thereto. ZKTeco does not extend the warranty of any kind, including, without limitation, any warranty of design, merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose.

ZKTeco does not assume responsibility for any errors or omissions in the information or documents which are referenced by or linked to this manual. The entire risk as to the results and performance obtained from using the information is assumed by the user.

ZKTeco in no event shall be liable to the user or any third party for any incidental, consequential, indirect, special, or exemplary damages, including, without limitation, loss of business, loss of profits, business interruption, loss of business information or any pecuniary loss, arising out of, in connection with, or relating

to the use of the information contained in or referenced by this manual, even if ZKTeco has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

This manual and the information contained therein may include technical, other inaccuracies or typographical errors. ZKTeco periodically changes the information herein which will be incorporated into new additions/amendments to the manual. ZKTeco reserves the right to add, delete, amend or modify the information contained in the manual from time to time in the form of circulars, letters, notes, etc. for better operation and safety of the machine/unit/equipment. The said additions or amendments are meant for improvement /better operations of the machine/unit/equipment and such amendments shall not give any right to claim any compensation or damages under any circumstances.

ZKTeco shall in no way be responsible (i) in case the machine/unit/equipment malfunctions due to any noncompliance of the instructions contained in this manual (ii) in case of operation of the machine/unit/equipment beyond the rate limits (iii) in case of operation of the machine and equipment in conditions different from the prescribed conditions of the manual.

The product will be updated from time to time without prior notice. The latest operation procedures and relevant documents are available on http://www.zkteco.com

If there is any issue related to the product, please contact us.

ZKTeco Headquarters

Address	ZKTeco Industrial Park, No. 26, 188 Industria <mark>l Road</mark> ,
	Tangxia Town, Dongguan, China.
Phone	+86 769 - 82109991
Fax	+86 755 - 89602394

For business-related queries, please write to us at sales@zkteco.com.

To know more about our global branches, visit <u>www.zkteco.com</u>.

About the Company

ZKTeco is one of the world's largest manufacturer of RFID and Biometric (Fingerprint, Facial, Finger-vein) readers. Product offerings include Access Control readers and panels, Near & Far-range Facial Recognition Cameras, Elevator/floor access controllers, Turnstiles, License Plate Recognition (LPR) gate controllers and Consumer products including battery-operated fingerprint and face-reader Door Locks. Our security solutions are multi-lingual and localized in over 18 different languages. At the ZKTeco state-of-the-art 700,000 square foot ISO9001-certified manufacturing facility, we control manufacturing, product design, component assembly, and logistics/shipping, all under one roof.

The founders of ZKTeco have been determined for independent research and development of biometric verification procedures and the productization of biometric verification SDK, which was initially widely applied in PC security and identity authentication fields. With the continuous enhancement of the development and plenty of market applications, the team has gradually constructed an identity authentication ecosystem and smart security ecosystem, which are based on biometric verification techniques. With years of experience in the industrialization of biometric verifications, ZKTeco was officially established in 2007 and now has been one of the globally leading enterprises in the biometric verification industry owning various patents and being selected as the National High-tech Enterprise for 6 consecutive years. Its products are protected by intellectual property rights.

About the Manual

This manual introduces the operations of ZPad Plus(4G).

All figures displayed are for illustration purposes only. Figures in this manual may not be exactly consistent with the actual products.

Document Conventions

Conventions used in this manual are listed below:

GUI Conventions

Convention	Description
<>	Button or key names for devices. For example, press <ok></ok>
[]	Window names, menu items, data table, and field names are inside square brackets. For example, pop up the [New User] window
/	desktop. For example, [File/Create/Folder].

Symbols

Convention	Description
	This implies about the notice or pays attention to, in the manual
Ÿ	The general information which helps in performing the operations faster
*	The information which is significant
e	Care taken to avoid danger or mistakes
	The statement or event that warns of something or that serves as a cautionary example.

Table of Contents

1		7
	1.1 Specifications	7
	1.2 Key Features	7
2	OPERATIONAL PROCEDURE	8
	2.1 FINGER ENROLLMENT	
	2.1.1 SELECT A FINGER FOR ENROLLMENT	8
	2.1.2 ENROLLMENT OPERATION	8
	2.2 How to Use a Touch Screen	8
	2.3 CARD PLACEMENT	9
	2.4 HOME SCREEN	9
	2.5 VERIFICATION MODES	9
	2.5.1 1:N VERIFICATION	10
	2.5.2 1:1 VERIFICATION	11
	2.5.3 ATTENDANCE EVENT SELECTION	13
3	MENU	14
4	EMPLOYEES MANAGEMENT	15
	4.1 ADD A NEW EMPLOYEE	16
	4.2 EDIT A REGISTERED EMPLOYEE	20
	4.3 DELETE A REGISTERED EMPLOYEE	21
5	T&A RECORDS	23
6	MESSAGES MANAGEMENT	24
	6.1 ADD A NEW MESSAGE	24
	6.2 MESSAGE DISPLAY	27
	6.3 EDIT A MESSAGE	27
	6.4 DELETE A MESSAGE	28
7	ATTENDANCE EVENTS MANAGEMENT	29
	7.1 ADD A NEW ATTENDANCE EVENT	29

	7.3 DELETE AN ATTENDANCE EVENT	33
8	ROLES MANAGEMENT	
	8.1 ADD A NEW ROLE	34
	8.2 EDIT AN EXISTING ROLE	
	8.3 DELETE AN EXISTING ROLE	
9	T&A SETTINGS	
	9.1 Manage Data	40
	9.2 PUSH SETTINGS	41
	9.3 WEB SERVER	
	9.4 RELAY SETTINGS	
	9.5 DATA INFO	
10	0 SYSTEM SETTINGS	
	10.1 GENERAL SETTINGS	
	10.2 Network	46
	10.3 Test Hardware	51
	10.4 DEBUGGING	51
	10.5 Device INFO	52
	10.6LOCATION	52
11	1 FIRMWARE UPDATER	53

1 Introduction

ZPad Plus(4G) is a Smart Time & Attendance device that offers a variety of time management solutions. You can assign user roles, set attendance rules, assign shifts and schedules, manage user data, and much more Time & Attendance procedures without much effort. In association with GoTime Cloud, your attendance details and employee data will be always available and secure in AWS.

1.1 Specifications

Feature	Specifications
Operating System	Android 7.1
Dimensions	240 x 130 x 45 mm
LCD Screen	7-inch Touch Screen
Capacity	8GB ROM / 1GB RAM
CPU	MSM8917 Quad-core A53(64bit) 1.4GHz
Power	12V DC
Sensor	SilkID Fingerprint Sensor
Communication	TCP <mark>/IP, Wi</mark> -Fi, Bluetooth, USB-host, 4G
RFID	Dual-frequency ID/MiFare
Battery	4 hours standby
Front Camera	2 MP

1.2 Key Features

- Self-service report and data management
- Multi-mode verification
- Shift and Schedule management
- Wireless communication via Wireless and Bluetooth

2 **Operational Procedure**

2.1 Finger Enrollment

Finger Enrollment procedure includes capturing a user's fingerprint and saving it as a template to the corresponding User ID.

2.1.1 Select a Finger for Enrollment

- It is recommended to use the index finger or middle finger to enroll your fingerprint.
- If the fingerprints of the selected hand are damaged, please use the fingers of the other hand. If the fingers are small, please enroll the thumb finger.

2.1.2 Enrollment Operation

- Place the finger flat and centered on the sensor surface.
- Remain placed until the success message appears. Please check below examples:



2.2 How to Use a Touch Screen

Touch the screen gently with the tip of your finger. Avoid damaging the screen with your nails.



2.3 Card Placement

Always place the RFID Cards below the fingerprint sensor to be recognized.

2.4 Home Screen



The Home Screen shows different options for the basic attendance events, which are: Check-In, Check-Out, Break In, Break Out, Overtime In, and Overtime Out. You can also access to the rest of the menus, which are + Events, Keyboard, and Apps. The home screen also displays the Current Date and Time, status of the Push communication, status of the Network connection, and the Battery status.

Below the current time, the selected attendance event will be displayed. If there is no selected event, **Check-In/Out** will appear.

2.5 Verification Modes

The basic attendance events are **Check-In**, **Check-Out**, **Break In**, **Break Out**, **Overtime In**, **and Overtime Out**. These are the events that are created in the device by default. It is possible to add more attendance events that may appear on the device screen or can be accessed through **+ Events** menu, in the lower-left corner of the screen.

It is also possible to register an attendance status with no event selected. In this case, the default attendance event **Check-In/Out** will be selected.

The process of registering an attendance punch in the device depends on the configuration of the verification mode and if the selection of an attendance event is set to mandatory.

2.5.1 1:N Verification

1:N is the default and the most used verification mode. If no other verification mode is configured, the attendance will be registered through 1:N verification. The device compares the current fingerprint collected by the fingerprint sensor with all the fingerprints saved on the device. If the fingerprint matches with the saved template, the verification is successful.

The operation is as follows:

1. Select the event of the attendance state either from the Home Screen or + **Events.** This is optional. If no attendance event is selected, the default **Check-In/Out** attendance event will be displayed.



2. Make the attendance punch on the device by Fingerprint or Card. If you want to register the attendance through Password, press the Keypad on the screen and type the password.

Home Screen

+ Events



3. The device will check for the registered Fingerprint/ Card/Password. If the verification is successful, a success message will be displayed as shown below:



4. If the verification is failed, an error message will be displayed.

2.5.2 1:1 Verification

The device can also perform a 1:1 Verification. The device compares the current fingerprint collected by the fingerprint sensor with the fingerprint template saved for the corresponding User ID. The employee has to enter the Employee ID first and then attendance punch can be made. This is used to provide an extra layer of security, or when the Fingerprints of the employees or Cards are difficult to read by the device. The operation is as follows:

1. Select the event of the attendance state either from the Home screen or + **Events.** This is optional. If no attendance event is selected, the default **Check-In/Out** attendance event will be displayed.

Home Screen

No messages				0/0	🖧 🔅 🕴
CHECK IN	26/11/2019 8:47 ZKTECO			CHECK	COUT
BREAK IN				BREAK	OUT
	1	2	3		
OVERTIME IN	4	5	6	OVERTIN	
	7	8	9		
	CANCEL	0	ОК		
+ Even	ts	Apps		Keyboard	

+ Events

No messages		0/0 📏 🐼 ሩ 👌
CHECK IN	DOCTOR	CHECK OUT
BREAK IN	BUSINESS TRIP	BREAK OUT
OVERTIME IN		OVERTIME OUT
+ Events	Apps	Keyboard

2. Enter the Employee Code and click **OK**.

No messages				0/0 > 🗠 🤄	
CHECK IN]26/11/20 Z	019 KT =1	8:49	CHECK OUT	
BREAK IN		2 <	Code	BREAK OUT	
	1	2	3		
OVERTIME IN	4	5	6	OVERTIME OUT	
	7	8	9		
	CANCEL	0	ок		

3. Make the attendance punch on the device through **Fingerprint** or **Card**. The device prompts a success message if the credential matches the entered Employee ID.



4. If the verification is failed, an error message will be displayed.

2.5.3 Attendance Event Selection

The device can be configured to compulsorily select an event before making an attendance punch. If this feature is enabled, (refer <u>T&A Settings – Punch Settings</u>) and you try to make an attendance punch without selecting an attendance event, a prompt appears as shown below:



3 <u>Menu</u>

Select **Apps** on the Home screen to open the Main Menu. The menu will be displayed as shown below:



Menu Na	ime	Description
Employees	V	You can add, edit, or delete the basic employee information. You can also enroll in PIN , Name , Fingerprint , Card , and Password . You can assign the Department to the employees.
T&A records		The interface displays the date-wise list of registered attendance punches. The details include User Photo , Name , Code , Punch Type , and Date .
Messages		You can add or delete the public or personal messages as required.

Attendance Events	You can add, edit, or delete the attendance events.
Roles	You can set the permissions for different functionalities of the device.
T&A Settings	You can configure the attendance parameters of the device.
System Settings	You can customize the Network settings, Language, Date & Time, etc.
Firmware Updater	You can update the firmware internally. Contact your distributor before using this feature.

The following menu appears when a user with no permissions selects **Apps** icon on the Home screen.



Menu	Description
Export Punches	You can export the attendance punches of the logged user to a USB drive connected to the device.
Messages	You can view the messages sent to the logged user.

4 Employees Management

The Employees Management menu manages the employee details of the device, which includes registering a new user, modifying the existing employee details, and deleting an employee. Select **Employees** on the Main menu.

4.1 Add a New Employee

The steps to add a new employee to the device is given below:

1. On the **Employees** interface, select **New Employee**.

John Smith	1	Ô
Peter Mathew	2	Ĩ
Felix Johnsom	3	Ĩ
Sarah James	4	ê
Patrick Lopez	5	*****
Ray Peters	6	*****
admin	admin	÷****

2. In the employee registration screen, fill the details of the employee. The **Code** and **Name** are the mandatory fields. The **Department** and **Role** fields are optional. Click the **User icon** to add a photo of the employee, which will be set as the User Photo.

J	÷ е	mployees		^
	-		Name	
			Code	
			Company Company	o
		Photo	No Role	0
	Ŭ	8		
		****		SAVE

3. When selecting the **Department**, there is an option to create a **New Department**. Select **Add new Department**.

← Employe	85	•
	John Doe	
	012	
	Company	
ō	Add new Department Company	
		SAVE

4. The following prompt appears while adding a new department, which will be assigned automatically to the employee being registered.

				^	dd new	Dep	artmer	nt						
				L						CANCE	ACCEPT			
				Co										
q	8	w			r	4	t	° y	•	u ,	11	o *	p °	G
q	' a	w	s	e '	r	۰ ۲	t	'y g	, ,	u ² j	i * k	° ' 1	p °	0 0 0
q •	' a	w ¹ z	s	e '	r	۰ ۲	t v	' y g	, ° h b	u' j	i 'k	° ' 1 !	р° ?	6 6 •

5. Select the verification modes available to enroll a **Fingerprint/Card/Password** for the Employee.



Enroll a Fingerprint

6. If Fingerprint is selected, a finger selection screen will appear as shown below:



7. Select the finger to enroll and press your finger consecutively on the fingerprint sensor to save the enrollment.



8. Once the fingerprint enrollment is done, click the left arrow icon, on the top left corner of the interface to go back to the previous screen.

Enrolling a Card

9. To enroll a card, click the **Card** icon and swipe the card on the Card Reader.



10. Once the card is enrolled, click the left arrow icon on the top left corner of the interface to go back to the previous screen.

Enroll a Password

- 11. To enroll a password, tap on the text field to enter the password and confirm the same password in the next text field.
- 12. Click **Save** to save the password.

← Password		^
	Password	
	Confirm password	
		SAVE

Click the left arrow on the top left corner of the interface to go back to the previous screen. There click Save to register the employee. After successful registration, the employee can make attendance punches.

+	Employees		÷ ÷
0	John Smith	1	Ŕ
Θ	Peter Mathew	2	Ĩ
Θ	Felix Johnsom	3	ê
0	Sarah James	4	Ĩ
Θ	Patrick Lopez	5	*****
Θ	Ray Peters	б	*****
Θ	John Doe	7	Ô
θ	admin	admin	ē •••••

4.2 Edit a registered Employee

1. Select the **Employee** whose details to be edited.

÷	Employees		÷ +
θ	John Smith	1	Ĩ.
θ	Peter Mathew	2	<u></u>
θ	Felix Johnsom	3	<u></u>
θ	Sarah James	4	<u></u>
θ	Patrick Lopez	5	*****
θ	Ray Peters	6	*****
θ	John Doe	7	<u></u>
0	admin	admin	ē •••••

The details of the employee will be displayed on the screen. The Code of the Employee cannot be edited.
 To edit any other fields, just click the field to be edited, modify the details, and click Save.

← Employees	0	*
	Felix Johnsons	
	3	
	Company	0
<i></i>	No Role	.0
*****		SAVE

3. Enrolling a Fingerprint, Card, or Password to an existing Employee can be done in the same way as it was done when registering the employee. If a Fingerprint, Card, or Password is already enrolled and you need to change it, a prompt appears to confirm the deletion of the previous fingerprint. If you select **Delete**, the existing fingerprint will be deleted.



4.3 Delete a registered Employee

When an employee is dismissed or resigned, you can delete the employee details on the device. Perform this function with caution because the Time and Attendance records of the employee will also be deleted. The process to delete an existing employee is given below:

1. On the Employees list, swipe the employee name towards left. You can see a **Delete** button on the right side of the interface.

← Employees		<u>بد</u> به
8 John Smith	1	Ĩ.
Peter Mathew	2	Ĩ.
Felix Johnsons	3	Delete
Sarah James	4	Ĩ
Patrick Lopez	5	*****
8 Ray Peters	6	*****
😑 John Doe	7	Ĩ.
e admin	admin	ē •••••

2. Click the **Delete** button to delete the employee. A prompt appears as shown below:

÷	Employees	•		+ <u>*</u> #	ł
8	John Smith				
8	Peter Mathew	1 2			
8	Felix Johnso	Are you sure you want to delete?			
8	Sarah James	Are you sure you want to delete?			
8	Patrick Lope	-	NO YES		
8	Ray Peters				•••
8	John Doe				
8	admin	admin		â	

3. After confirmation, the employee will be deleted. This operation cannot be undone.

5 <u>T&A Records</u>

The **Time & Attendance Records** menu displays the list of attendance punches registered on the device. It does not let the user delete the records or edit them in any way. You can scroll down to view the previous attendance punches.

← Atte	ndance Recor	ds		Q Filte	r by name/code 🔄 🏫
e an	dres	5	Check Out	Ō	07/12/2019 12:47 PM
e an	dres	5	Check Out	Ĩ	07/12/2019 12:47 PM
e an	dres	5	Check In	Ĩ	07/12/2019 12:46 PM
e an	dres	5	Check Out	Ĩ	07/12/2019 12:36 PM
e an	dres	5	Check In	ē	07/12/2019 12:35 PM
e ve	ronica castro	1	Check Out	Ĩ	07/12/2019 12:33 PM
•			Dece al clas	8	07/12/2019 12:33

The attendance record consists of the following fields:

- User Photo
- Name
- Code
- Attendance Event
- Verification mode (Fingerprint, Card or Password)
- Date and Time

It is also possible to show only the records of a specific employee by filtering the Employee Name or Code.

6 Messages Management

The device is equipped with a messaging option that delivers the message to the employees. The messages can be sent to one Employee or a specific list of Employees or publicly. A message directed to an employee or a list of employees will be shown when making the attendance punch. When the message is sent publicly, it will be displayed on the Home screen and it does not require attendance punch.

6.1 Add a New Message

1. On the Messages menu, click the New Message icon.

÷	Messages 🗾 🔶	
	No data	
	NO data	

2. Tap on the text field, to enter the message content.

← Messages	보 🔶
Content	
Please Enter Message	
Other	
Start Time	>
End Time	>
Public	()
	SEND

3. Once the contents of the message have been entered, choose if the message is directed to a specific employee or a list of employees or all the employees.

4. Enable the **Public toggle** button to send the message to all the employees.

\leftarrow Messages	Destination Employee 📫 🕂
Content	
Please Enter Message	
Other	
Start Time	>
End Time	>
Public	0
	SEND

5. If you need to send the message to a specific employee or a list of employees, click the Add user icon.

Note: It is possible to select all the employees, and this will not make the message as Public, as the Public messages are delivered without attendance punch. Select the employees and click **OK**.

÷	Mes	sage		*
	θ	John Smith	1	ê
	θ	Peter Mathew	2	Ĩ.
	θ	Felix Johnsons	3	ê
	θ	Sarah James	4	ê
	θ	Patrick Lopez	5	*****
~	•	D All		ок

6. After selecting the employees, set the date. Then set the Start and End time to display the message. You have to set the Date and Time for both the Start and End time.

\leftarrow Messages									+•	ft.
Content										
Medical Exam Today										
	2019	<		Nove	mber	2019		>		
Other	Tue	5	м	т	w	τ	F	5		
Start Time	Nov 26					7				>
FedTime	1407 20	10	11	12	13	14	15	16		~
End Time		17	18	19	20	21	22	23		2
Public		24	25	26	27	28	29	30		0
						CAN	CEL	OK		
										SEND

7. After setting the date, set the time to display the message.

\leftarrow Messages			± 🔶
Medical Exam Today			
Other Start Time		11 ¹² 1 10 2	
End Time	9 :30	0 · · · ·	>
Public	AM PM	7 5 5	
		CANCEL OK	
			SEND
			SEND

8. After setting the date and time, click **Send** to save the message and display it at the specified time.

6.2 Message Display

The examples of Public and Private messages are given below. In the following screenshot, we have a public message "**Welcome**" and an employee-specific message "**Medical Exam Today**".



The following screenshot shows how the messages are displayed on the Home screen.

< Welcome		1/1 > 🖄 🔅 🕻
CHECK IN	Messages for Andrew Patterson	CHECK OUT
BREAK IN	Medical Exam Today	BREAK OUT
OVERTIME IN		OVERTIME OUT
+ Even	Apps	Keyboard

Note: If 1/2 appears to the right of a public message, then the displayed message is the 1st message out of all the messages. Swipe the right arrow to view the remaining messages.

6.3 Edit a message

It is possible to edit an existing message. The procedure is given below:

1. Select the required message to edit in the list of created messages.



2. Edit the message and click **Send**.

6.4 Delete a Message

It is possible to delete the expired messages in every 24 hours (view <u>T&A Settings</u>). Also, a message can be deleted manually. The procedure is given below:

1. On the **Messages** menu, **swipe left** the message that needs to be deleted, and a red **Delete** button will appear to the right of the screen as shown below:

\leftarrow Messages		Þ	f
Medical Exam Today	Nov 26, 2019 9:32:17 PM Nov 27, 2019 9:32:22	2 PM	Private
me	Nov 26, 2019 9:32:37 PM Nov 27, 2019 9:32:41 PM	Public	Delete

2. Click the **Delete** button to delete the message. Once the deletion is confirmed, the message will disappear from the message list.



7 Attendance Events Management

Attendance events are the categories of attendance statuses. The device includes a list of basic attendance events that can be expanded to meet any needs. Attendance events are managed in the Attendance Events menu.

7.1 Add a New Attendance Event

1. On the **Attendance Events** menu, click the **New Event** icon.

← Attendance Events → ♠	
Check IN	\mathcal{L}
Check OUT	
Break IN	
Break OUT	
Overtime IN	
Overtime OUT	

2. Enter the **Code** and **Name** of the **Event**.

← Event Detail	A
Code	
Name	
SAVE	

3. Click **Save** and the event will be displayed on the events list. In the following screenshot, an example is given with an event named "**Doctor OUT**" with **Code no. 7**.

← Attendance Events	+ +
Check IN	
Check OUT	
Break IN	
Break OUT	
Overtime IN	
Overtime OUT	
Doctor OUT	

4. The event "**Doctor OUT**" will be displayed on the home screen below the previous events.

No messages	State Barris	0/0 > 🖄 🔆 🦂 🕴		
CHECK IN	26/11/2019	CHECK OUT		
BREAK IN	9:51	BREAK OUT		
OVERTIME IN	CHECK IN/OUT	OVERTIME OUT		
DOCTOR OUT	ZKTECO			
+ Events	Apps	Keyboard		

Note: The Home screen will only show the events with codes 1-8. The remaining events will be displayed on the **+ Events** menu.

1. In the following example, an event with code no. 10 has been created with the name "**Lunch Out**". The event will be displayed on the **+Events** menu.

← Attendance Events		+ +
Check IN		
Check OUT		
Break IN		
Break OUT		
Overtime IN		
Overtime OUT		
Doctor OUT		
Lunch OUT		
		o/o > 🖎 ሩ 🇯
CHECK IN	LUNCH OUT	CHECK OUT
BREAK IN		BREAK OUT
OVERTIME IN		OVERTIME OUT
DOCTOR OUT		
+ Events	Apps	Keyboard

7.2 Edit an Attendance Event

User-created attendance events can be modified. The only field that can be modified is the Name. The default attendance events cannot be modified in any way.

1. In the following screenshot, the event **Doctor OUT** is edited.

← Attendance Events	+	A
Check IN		
Check OUT		
Break IN		
Break OUT		
Overtime IN		
Overtime OUT		
Doctor OUT		
Lunch OUT		

2. After editing the name, click **Save** to save the changes.

← Event Detail	A
7	
Sick OUT	
	SAVE

3. The event list on the Home screen is updated as shown below:

No messages	S. S. Market and S.	0/0 > 💩 🐼 🕴
CHECK IN	26/11/2019	CHECK OUT
BREAK IN	9:53	BREAK OUT
	CHECK IN/OUT	OVERTIME OUT
SICK OUT	ZKTECO	
+ Events	Apps	Keyboard

7.3 Delete an Attendance Event

The default attendance events cannot be deleted but you can delete the user-created events. The procedure is given below:

1. In the Attendance events menu, **swipe left** the event that needs to be deleted. A red **Delete** button will appear on the right side of the interface.

+ Attendance Events -	+ +
Check IN	
Check OUT	
Break IN	
Break OUT	
Overtime IN	
Overtime OUT	
Sick OUT	
OUT	Delete

2. After deleting the event, the event list will be updated accordingly.

← Attendance Events	+ •
Check IN	
Check OUT	
Break IN	
Break OUT	
Overtime IN	
Overtime OUT	
Sick OUT	

8 Roles Management

Roles are the set of permissions that can be assigned to an employee or a group of employees regarding the access of the device. For example, a role can be set to forbid editing of T&A Settings but allow checking of T&A Records. Similarly, another role can be set where the user can make only the attendance punch with no additional permissions.

Roles are managed in the Roles menu. It is not possible to add, modify, or delete permission individually. When a role includes permission, the entire group of employees has the permission to perform the respective operation.

Roles can be set by including the following permissions:

- **Roles Manager**: The assigned employees can access the Roles menu.
- System Administrator: The assigned employees can access the System Settings.
- Webserver User: The assigned employee can access the Webserver as an Administrator.

Warning: The assigned employees must have a Password to access the Webserver as an Administrator.

- **T&A Manager**: The assigned employees can access the Employees menu and the T&A Settings menu.
- **Apps Dashboard**: The assigned employees can only access the Messages menu and the T&A Records menu. Disabling this permission also disables the rest of the permissions except the Webserver permission.

By default, the device includes a Super Admin role that has all the permissions. If no employees are assigned to the Super Admin role, no restrictions will be enforced while accessing the menu. The Super Admin can create new roles, edit the existing user-created roles, and delete any of the existing user-created roles.

8.1 Add a New Role

Once created, the role needs to be assigned to employees to configure access levels. The process to add a new role to the device is given below:

1. In the Roles menu, click the + icon on the top right corner of the interface to add a **New Role.**

itules	+ •
No Role	
Super Admin	
Basic Employee	

2. Enter the name of the Role and the corresponding permissions. Click **Save** to save the role.

÷	Role Detail
Adv	nced Employee Role Name
	Roles manager
	System administration
	WebServer user
	T&A manager
	Apps dashboard
	SAVE

3. The created role will appear in the list of roles.

Note: The user-created roles are sorted alphabetically on the Roles menu.

+	A
	+

4. After creating a role, it can be assigned to the employees.

← Employees		^	
	Sarah James		
	4		
	Company	0	
Ô	No Role	0	
	No Role Super Admin		
	Advanced Employee		

8.2 Edit an Existing Role

The process to edit an existing role is given below:

1. In the **Roles** menu, click the **Role** that needs to be edited.

← Roles	+	A
No Role		
Super Admin		
Advanced Employee		
Basic Employee		

2. Click **Save** after making the changes.

÷	Role Detail	1
Su	er Advanced Employee	
	Roles manager	
2	System administration	
	WebServer user	
	T&A manager	
\checkmark	Apps dashboard	
	SAVE	17

Note: The SuperAdmin role cannot be edited.

8.3 Delete an Existing Role

The process for deleting a role is as follows:

1. In the Roles menu, swipe left the role that needs to be deleted. A red **Delete** button will appear on the screen.

← R	oles			<u>+ </u>	î.
No Role	•				
Super A	dmin				
nced Emp	oloyee			Del	ete
Basic E	mployee				

2. After deleting the role, all the employees to whom the role had been assigned will no longer have a role assigned to them.

r Admin Employee	
Employee	

9 <u>T&A Settings</u>

You can configure the Time and Attendance parameters such as Attendance punch, System data, etc.

← Attendance Settings	^
Punch Duplicate punch period (mir 0 minutes	nutes)
Manage Data Camera mode No photo	
Tu Push Display user photo	
Web Server Timeout for selected attend Seconds	lance event (seconds)
Force attendance event sele	rction 🗼
Force 1:1 punching	0
Save punch location	0
Voice Settings Male Voice	

- **Duplicate punch period**: The duplicate punch period defines the time duration in which the device considers only punching for the first time, even if the user makes punch for the same attendance state (E.g.: Check-in) several times within the defined punch period.
- Camera Mode: Specifies the behavior of the camera while making the attendance punch. The options are:
 - **No photo**: The device will not take a photo while making an attendance punch.
 - **Take photo**: The device will take a photo while making an attendance punch, but the photo will not be saved.
 - Take photo and save on success: The device will take a photo and save it if the verification is successful.
 - **Take photo and always save**: The device will take a photo and save it whether the verification is successful or not.
- **Display user photo**: Specifies if the photo registered to the employee will be shown while making the attendance punch.
- **Timeout for selected attendance events (seconds)**: Specifies the time on which an event selection (before punching) will be discarded if no attendance is registered.
- **Force attendance event selection**: If this option is enabled, it will be mandatory to select an attendance event on the device screen before registering the attendance.
- **Force 1:1 punching**: If this option is enabled, the User Code will be needed to identify the employee. For example, the Code to identify the employee, and the fingerprint to register the attendance is

required.

- Voice Settings: Establishes if the voice of the device is a male voice or a female voice.
- Update SilkId Library: Displays the current version of the SilkID sensor library and permits the update.
- **MCU Version**: Displays the current MCU (microcontroller Unit) version.

9.1 Manage Data

← Attendan	← Attendance Settings	
Punch	Export all punches Export all punches	
Manage Data	Delete all T&A Delete all T&A log	
↑ _{↓ Push}	Delete range T&A Delete T&A log by range time	
Web Server	Backup Export full database to file backup	
Relay	Restore Import file beckup to database	
🗟 Data Info	Delete DB entries expired Delete all DB entries after they've expired (once a day)	0
	Delete Attendance photos Delete Attendance photos and export to USB	

- Export all punches: Exports all the registered punches in the device.
- Delete all T&A: Deletes all the T&A records from the device.
- **Delete range T&A**: Deletes all the T&A records from the device in the specified date range.
- **Backup**: Exports the database of the device to a file that will be placed on the root of a USB-drive connected to the device.
- **Restore**: Restores the database of the device from a file that is saved on the root of a USB-drive connected to the device.
- Delete DB entries expired: Enables to delete the expired messages once in every 24 hours.
- **Delete Attendance photos**: Deletes the photos stored in the device while making the attendance punch.
- **Delete all Data**: Deletes all data from the device. The result will be a factory-new device.

9.2 Push Settings



- Enable Push Protocol: The push protocol lets the device communicate with the software that uses this protocol. It can communicate with GoTimeCloud, ZKTime Enterprise + Extractor, WDMS, BioTime 7, and BioTime 8. Please ask your distributor/sales representative for more information.
- **Push Server Address**: Internet address where the push server is located.
- Push Server Port: Communication configuration aspect to connect to a push server.
- **Timeout**: Communication configuration aspect to connect to a push server.
- **Enable HTTPS**: It makes it mandatory for the device to only connect to a push server via a secured connection.

← Attendance Settings		≜
Punch	Enable Web Server Start web server automatically when device boot completed	()
Manage Data	Web Server Port 8080	
↑ _{↓ Push}	Enable HTTPS Default protocol is HTTP	D
Web Server		
Relay		
🙆 Data Info		

9.3 Web Server

← Attendan	ce Settings	ft
Punch	Enable Web Server Start web server automatically when device boot completed	0
Manage Data	Web Server Port 8080	
↑ _{↓ Push}	Enable HTTPS Default protocol is HTTP	•
Web Server		
Relay		
Data Info		

If the Web Server is activated, it is possible to access the device from the same local area network with a standard internet browser. From the Web Server, all the Employee details, Events, and Messages can be managed, along with Reporting Options (Refer the **BioTime Web** User Manual for more information on the subject). The device displays the address needed to access the Web Server when the **Enable Web Server** option is enabled, the port needed to connect, and if the connection needs to be secure with HTTPS.

9.4 Relay Settings

← Attendance	9 Settings	A
Punch	Relay as door Enable	()
Manage Data	Delay 0	
↑↓ Push	Duration 1	
Web Server	Relay as siren Enable	
Relay	Duration 1	
Data Info	> Activation hour 00:00	
	> Activation weekdays None	

The ZPad Plus(4G) device integrates a relay that can be used for access control among other functionalities. The behavior of the relay can be configured as per your requirements.

Relay as a door:

• **Enable**: When the relay is enabled, on each attendance punch, the relay will be activated according to the settings.

- **Delay**: Sets the delay time for attendance punch and relay activation.
- **Duration**: Sets the open duration of the relay.

Relay as a siren:

- Enable: When enabled, the relay will activate an alarm at the specified hour.
- **Duration**: Sets the active duration of the relay.
- **Activation hour**: Sets the time of activation of the relay.
- Activation Weekdays: Sets the days on which the relay will be activated.

9.5 Data Info

← Attendan	ce Settings	f
Punch	Number of employees : 6	
Manage Data	Number of fingerprints : 8	
↑ _{↓ Push}	Number of cards : 0	
Web Server	Number of attendance logs : 18	
Relay	Number of attendance photo : 0	
Data Info		

In this section, the number of records for the different aspects of the device will be displayed. There is no option to delete or edit the records. The aspects include:

- Number of registered employees
- Number of registered fingerprints
- Number of registered cards
- Number of attendance logs
- Number of captured attendance photos

10 System Settings

You can set the internal configurations of the device such as network configuration, language, date and time of the device, etc.

10.1 General Settings

← System Settin	gs C restart () power off 🏫	
General Settings	Language English	
←→ Network	Date & Time Set date & time	
🔧 Test Hardware	Custom Wallpapers Set custom main and dashboard wallpapers	
Device Info	Custom Logo Select custom logo from USB	
Debugging	Volume Adjust volume	

Language: It is possible to set the device in the following languages: English, Spanish, Czech, Simplified Chinese, Italian, Portuguese, German, French, Turkish, Polish, and Romanian. The change in the language of the device will change the language of the menus accordingly.

Date & Time:

Automatic date & time Use network-provided time	•
Set date May 3, 2019	
Set time 3:03 PM	
Select time zone GMT+00:00 GMT+00:00	
Use 24-hour format 1:00 PM	0

- Automatic Date and Time: When enabled, the current date and time will be retrieved from the internet.
- **Set date**: Only available when the Automatic date and time is disabled.

- Set time: Only available when the Automatic date and time is disabled.
- **Select time zone**: Sets the Time zone according to the location of device installation.
- **Use 24-hour format**: Displays the time in 12- or 24-hour format.

Custom Wallpapers: The wallpaper is the background image of the Home screen.

← System Settin	gs	C RESTART	A
General Settings	Set default wallpaper Set default wallpaper		
Network	Load from device Select custom wallpaper from Device		
🔧 Test Hardware	Load from USB Select custom wallpaper from USB		
Device Info			
Q Location			
Debugging			

- Set default wallpaper: Sets the default wallpaper of the device.
- **Load from device**: Sets a wallpaper image from the images present in the device.
- **Load from USB**: Sets a wallpaper image from the images present in a connected USB-drive.

Note: The supported file formats are PNG and JPG. The filename must not contain spaces.

Custom Logo: Allows the user to modify the logo shown on the Home screen of the device. The logo file must be in the USB drive connected to the device.

10.2 Network

The device can be connected to the network through a **wired Ethernet connection**, **Wi-Fi**, **Mobile data**.

To select one of the connection types, click **Network** on the **System Settings menu**.

← System Se	ettings	ሮ 🕛 🏚	
General Settings	WIS "ZKTECO_LAB"		
← Network	Ethemet 0.0.0		
Test Hardware	Mobile data		
Device Info	NTP 2.android.pool.ntp.org		
Q Location	Remote Access Configure SSH server		
Debugging			

You can select the connectivity type by clicking **Wi-Fi, Ethernet, Mobile data**.

1. Wi-Fi

÷	Settings	:
	On	۰
₹.	ZKTECO_LAB Saved	
-	WLAN_0FF5	
₩.	ZKTECO_GUEST	
-	DIRECT-96-HP ENVY 4520 series	
▼.	imagio	
	ウ ロ イシ	

Select the required Wi-Fi connection and enter the password.



2. Wired Ethernet

÷	Settings	
Ethern	et	•
Etherne	tis enabled	
IP Add	ress	
192.16	3.1.90	
Netma	sk	
255.25	5.255.0	
Gatew	ау	
192.16	3.1.1	
Primar	y DNS	
1.1.1.1		
Secon	1 DNS	
8.8.8.8		
Ethern	et IP mode	
dhcp		

- **Ethernet**: Switch to turn on or off the ethernet.
- IP address: Displays the current IP address of the device.
- **Netmask**: Displays the Netmask of the device.
- **Gateway**: Displays the IP address of the router that provides the internet connection to the device.
- **Primary and Secondary DNS**: Displays the Domain name server information.
- **Ethernet IP mode**: Select between DHCP (the IP address of the device will be assigned by the router) or Static (All the details of the connection as IP Address, Gateway, Netmask and DNS will be provided by the user).

3. Mobile data

Mobile data: Allow your device to connect to a mobile data network.

- System S	ettings		C () 1	
General Settings	Wifi "ZKTECO_LAB"			
Network	Ethernet 0.0.0.0			
Test Hardware	Mobile data			
Device Info	NTP 2.android.pool.ntp.org			
Location	Remote Access Configure SSH server			
Debugging				
Mobile petwo	wrk settings			
Mobile netwo	rk settings	4	_	1
Mobile netwo Data roaming Connect to data service	rk settings	-		
Mobile network Data roaming Connect to data service Preferred network to	rk settings es when roaming pe e: LTE/TDSCDMA/CDMA/EvDo/GSM/WCDMA		•	
Mobile network Data roaming Connect to data servic Preferred network to Preferred network moo Enhanced 4G LTE M Use LTE services to imp	rk settings es when roaming pe e: LTE/TDSCDMA/CDMA/EvDo/GSM/WCDMA ode rove voice and other communications (recommended)	•	
Mobile network Data roaming Connect to data service Preferred network tho Preferred network moor Enhanced 4G LTE M Use LTE services to imp System select Change the CDMA road	rk settings as when roaming rpe e: LTE/TDSCDMA/CDMA/EvDo/GSM/WCDMA ode rove voice and other communications (recommended ning mode)	•	
Mobile network Data roaming Connect to data service Preferred network to Preferred network mod Enhanced 4G LTE M Use LTE services to imp System select Change the CDMA road CDMA subscription Change between RUIM	rk settings es when roaming pe e: LTE/TDSCDMA/CDMA/EvDo/GSM/WCDMA ode rove voice and other communications (recommended ning mode /SIM and NV		•	
Mobile network Data roaming Connect to data service Preferred network to Preferred network moo Enhanced 4G LTE M Use LTE services to imp System select Change the CDMA road CDMA subscription Change between RUIM Access point names	rk settings es when roaming pe e: LTE/TDSCDMA/CDMA/EvDo/GSM/WCDMA ode rove voice and other communications (recommended ning mode /SIM and NV)	•	

- **Data roaming**: Allow your device to connect to data services while roaming, outside your country or foreigner services.
- **Preferred network type**: LTE/TDSCDMA/CDMA type of connection, change the type of frequency. Check with your operator.



- Enhanced 4G LTE Mode: Use LTE services to improve voice and other communication.
- System select: Automatic

Data roaming Connect to data services	when roaming	
Preferred network typ Preferred network mode:	e L ^{ITE} System select	
Enhanced 4G LTE Mo Use LTE services to impro	de 🔿 Home only	
System select	 Automatic 	
Change the CDMA roami	ng m	CANCEL
CDMA subscription Change between RUIM/S	IM and NV	
Access point names		

• **CDMA subscription**: RUIM/SIM NV. It's the kind SIM format.

- Access point names: To use mobile access you need access to a wireless access point. Touch to display a list of the Access Point names. If you can view the APNs of your operator.
 - Reset to default: Open the three points upper right corner. If you delete or can't select the correct APN, the APNs back to SIM default configuration.

← APNs	⊕ :
TLF ES settings telefonica.es	۲

 Network operators: Using this feature you can view the current network connection. You can Search networks also scan and select a network operator manually, or choose automatically set the network selection to Automatic.

Search networks Search for all available n	ietworks		
Choose automatically Automatically choose pro	y referred network		

In the Network section of the system settings, the **NTP** Time Server and SSH server of the device can be configured. Contact your distributor for more information.

Remote Access used only by the technical department.

10.3 Test Hardware

÷	System Settin	gs Crestart Upower off
\$	Device	FP Check Fingerprint hardware
←	Network	RFID Check RFID hardware
٩	Test Hardware	Camera Check Camera hardware
Ť	Debugging	Speaker Check Speaker hardware
٠	Device Info	Screen Check Screen hardware
9	Location	Relay Check Relay hardware

In this section, you can test all the hardware parameters of the device. In case of any issues with the hardware of the device, you can perform tests on Fingerprint Sensor, Card Reader, Camera, Speaker, Display Screen, and Relay.

10.4 Debugging



Developer-only information is shown in this section. Do not make any changes without the Distributor's knowledge.

10.5 Device Info



The interface displays the device information such as Serial number, Manufacture Name, Date of manufacture, App version, and percentage of available memory and storage consumption.

10.6 Location

÷	System Settin	igs	${f C}$ restart	A
\$	Device	Network Location determined by network		~
←→	Network			
٩	Test Hardware			
*	Debugging			
۲	Device Info			
9	Location			

Select this option to obtain the location information of the device from the network. If the location is disabled, the **Save Punch Location** option in the T&A Settings will be disabled.

11 Firmware Updater

This option allows you to update the Firmware. As the development of the ZPAD+ continues, new versions of the app will be available. The process of updating this app is handled by the firmware updater. It is important not to update the Firmware unless specifically directed by your ZKTeco distributor.

← Firmware Updater	n
Updater URL	
Update from USB	
Manual Update	

- **Updater URL**: Internet address where app updates will be looked for.
- **Update from USB**: Look for updates in the USB-drive connected to the device.
- Manual Update: Executes update from the APK files which are already present in the device.

ZKTeco Industrial Park, No. 26, 188 Industrial Road,

Tangxia Town, Dongguan, China.

Phone : +86 769 - 82109991

Fax : +86 755 - 89602394

www.zkteco.com



Copyright © 2020 ZKTECO CO., LTD. All Rights Reserved.